
 

Board of Adjustment 

Thursday, January 7, 2015 

7:00 PM 

Hood Room, Matthews Town Hall 

 

AGENDA 

 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. INVOCATION 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MIINUTES 

 

IV.        VARIANCE REQUEST: BA 2016-1, Fence Height Variance at 3247 Winding Trail  

 

V.       ADJOURNMENT 

 

.          

 



MINUTES 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2015 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

 
PRESENT: Members Cecil Sumners, and Jeanne Moore; Alternate Members Thomas Lawing, Gary 

Smith and Peter Tuz; Attorney Robert Blythe; Senior Planner Jay Camp and 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Betty Lynd 

 
ABSENT: Chairman Jim Jiles; Members Jerry Meek and Jim Mortimer 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION: 
 
Mr. Sumners called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Alternates Thomas Lawing, Gary Smith, and Peter Tuz will act as voting members for the meeting. 
 
Attorney Robert Blythe gave the invocation. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 
Ms. Moore made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 9, 2015 meeting as submitted. Mr. Lawing 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
SWEARING IN: 
 
Mr. Sumners swore in all potential speakers. 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST: BA2015-5, Rear Yard Variance, 1400 Four Lakes Dr 
 
STAFF REPORT:  
 
Mr. Camp stated the request is a variance to the rear yard to construct a single family home. The 
applicant is requesting a 15 yard variance. This site is zoned R-15 and is bordered by similar residential 
lots and East Independence Boulevard (U.S. 74). The site is larger than a typical R-15 lot, measuring 
21,000 square feet. Mr. Camp showed the board the submitted survey on the projector screen. 
 
Planning staff notes that it is possible to build a home on this lot without the variance. Staff has provided 
measurements of similar size homes on nearby lots.  
 
Ms. Moore asked if the whole area outlined in green is the applicant’s lot. Mr. Camp stated that it is. Ms. 
Moore asked if this would encroach on his neighbors. Mr. Camp stated that he could not legally encroach 
on neighboring properties. The variance request will place his home closer to neighboring lots. 
 
Applicant Bob Rahilly, of John Street stated that the problem is the lot shape. He stated that he requested 
the variance in order to center the home on the lot. Mr. Rahilly explained that his home would sit closer to 
his neighbor’s home than other adjacent homes so it would not look similar to the rest of the 
neighborhood without the variance. He stated that his lot is approximately 8 foot higher than the adjacent 
commercial building. 
 
Ms. Moore asked how far away from the rear lot line would the home be located. 
 
Luis Albiza, the contractor building the home, stated that to the right side of the property the neighbor has 
built their home almost on the side setback line. If Mr. Rahilly were to fit the home into the required 



Board of Adjustment 
December 3, 2015 

 
 

2 

setbacks, he would also have to build very close to the side yard setback and the two homes would be 
closer together visually than other homes in the neighborhood. Mr. Albiza stated the variance would allow 
Mr. Rahilly’s home to conform to the rest of the neighborhood’s visual appearance. 
 
Ms. Moore asked if the applicant had considered floorplans that would fit the current allowed building pad. 
Mr. Albiza stated that it would increase the cost of construction and stop Mr. Rahilly from building a ranch 
floor plan that he desires. 
 
Mr. Albiza presented photos of the site, which have been included in the record. 
 
Brandy Cox, of Forest Drive came forward to speak for the neighbors. She stated there is no opposition 
from the neighborhood in granting the variance. 
 
Mr. Rahilly stated that he appreciated the board’s consideration. 
 
DELIBERATION: 
 
Mr. Sumners stated that from his perspective, the variance would allow the home to conform to the 
neighborhood. Ms. Moore stated she believe it was a reasonable request. 
 

Findings of Fact 

 

1.  There would be unnecessary hardship from strict application of the ordinance. 
 
2. Hardship results from the conditions that are peculiar to the property, without granting the variance.  
 
3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or property owner.  
 
4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the title, because public 
safety is secured and justice is achieved.  
 
Mr. Smith stated that the shape of the lot and the required setbacks restrict the size of the building pad. 
Mr. Tuz stated the property owner is coming forward now as opposed to this matter being discovered by 
staff once the home is built. The shape of the lot would still be an issue no matter who the property owner 
is. Mr. Tuz also stated that it will enhance the neighborhood by allowing the home to not be so close to 
neighboring homes. 
 
Ms. Moore made a motion to approve BA2015-5, variance to the rear yard setback. Mr. Tuz seconded the 
motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Mr. Smith made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:32 p.m. Mr. Lawing seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Betty Lynd 
Zoning Technician/Deputy Town Clerk 



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for 3247 Winding Trail 
January 7, 2016 
 
 

 
Summary of Request 

 
The applicant requests a variance of 3’ +/- to allow an existing fence with a height of up to 
9’ or more to remain on the property.   

  
Background 

 
The property at 3247 Winding Trail, further identified as tax parcel 21517134, is a corner lot 
near the entrance to the Saddlebrook subdivision. The area of the lot in question is a side 
lot line on the south side of the property adjoining 3239 Winding Trail. Town Code Enforce-
ment Officer Carlo McKoy issued a Notice of Violation on November 19, 2015. In the no-
tice, which can be found later in this report, Mr. McKoy cites the owner of the property for a 
privacy fence that is greater than 6’ on some portions of the property. Within the Town of 
Matthews, fences and walls in residential districts may only extend 6’ from the ground as 
measured directly under the fence. The property owner has corrected the excess fence 
height on the street side of the lot. In the variance application, the applicant complains of 
privacy and safety concerns as the primary reason for retaining the portion of the fence on 
with additional height on the interior side. However, this is a common issue for homeown-
ers in a subdivision setting and does not present a unique situation worthy of the granting 
of a variance. If a variance is granted, it could indeed set a precedent for homeowners 
seeking to construct taller privacy fences in the community.   
 

 
 

Potential Solutions 
 

Unlike the majority of homes in subdivisions in Matthews, there exists a large distance of 
approximately 60’ between the subject home and the adjacent home. This gracious sepa-
ration allows more room for plantings and vegetation. The subject home is also located at a 
higher elevation than the property from which they are attempting to gain privacy from. 
There are several solutions which the property owner has not indicated they have attempt-
ed which may remedy privacy concerns. Additional landscaping can be installed along 
common lot lines where privacy is an issue. Also, the 6’ height limit only applies within the 
required yard areas. This property, zoned R-15, has a 10’ side yard requirement. The own-
er could elect to move the fence 10’ inward and build the fence as high as they choose 
without impacting the adjacent owner.  
 



Example Findings of Fact  

In reaching a decision on a variance request, the Board shall make 
 findings upholding all of the following criteria:  

  

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to 
demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  

The owner has several options available to created the intended level of privacy without violation of 
Town Code. This options include, but are not limited to, increased landscaping and relocation of the 
fence.  

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. 
(Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are 
common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.)  

The condition is die to personal issues, not unique circumstances related to the land, which is the 
criteria needed to make a hardship finding.  

 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchas-
ing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be 
regarded as a self-created hardship.  

The fence appears to have been constructed by a previous owner.   

 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this Title, public safety is se-
cured, and substantial justice is achieved.  

 The request is inconsistent with the UDO. The argument provided in the application is not incon-
sistent with virtually any typical subdivision lot within the Town. Using the argument provided, any 
homeowner could request a variance to fence height within the Town.   

 



Findings of Fact Standards for Zoning Variances 

  

In granting any zoning variance, the Board of Adjustment shall make findings that the spirit of the ordinance shall be ob-
served, public safety and welfare shall be secured, and substantial justice shall be done. To reach these findings, the Board 

of Adjustment shall consider the following 7 standards:  

  

1. That special or unique circumstances or conditions or practical difficulties exist which apply to the land, 
buildings or uses involved which are not generally applicable to other land, buildings, structures, or uses in 
the same zoning districts.  

  

2. That the special conditions or circumstances or practical difficulties do not result from the actions of the 
property owner or applicant, their agent, employee, or contractor. Errors made by such persons in the de-
velopment, construction, siting or marketing process shall not be grounds for a variance except in cases 
where a foundation survey submitted to the Planning Director, or designee, before a contractor proceeds 
beyond the foundation stage has not revealed an error which is discovered later. 

  

3. That the unique hardship situations cited by the applicant are not hardships resulting from personal or 
household members’ circumstances which would no longer be applicable to the location if the applicant or 
household was no longer present at the property. 

  

4. That the strict enforcement of this Title would deprive the owner or applicant of reasonable use of the 
property that is substantially consistent with the intent of this Title. 

  

5. That the granting of a variance will not result in advantages or special privileges to the applicant or prop-
erty owner that this Title denies to other land, structures, or uses in the same district, and it is the minimum 
variance necessary to provide relief. 

  

6. That the proposed use and the appearance of any proposed addition or alteration will be compatible with, 
and not negatively impact, nearby properties. 

  

7. That the variance shall not be materially detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons residing or 
working in the neighborhood. Consideration of the effects of the variance shall include but not be limited to, 
increases in activity, noise, or traffic resulting from any expansion of uses allowed by the variance.  



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for 3247 Winding Trail 
January 7, 2016 
 
 

 
 

The aerial image below shows the approximate location of the portion of the fence in viola-
tion.   

  
 

 
 
 

Area of Fence in Violation 



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for 1400 Four Lakes Dr 
January 7, 2016 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 


































